Appendix A: Request for Application (RFA) 
All applications will be assessed to determine the applicant’s eligibility to participate in Value in Treatment. Applicants that are deemed to be eligible will then be scored based on application scoring criteria outlined above and responses to the following application questions. Applicants must answer all application questions. CMS reserves the right to seek additional information from applicants after the application period closes. 

Eligibility Criteria

If the response to any one of the following questions 1-7 is “the applicant is ineligible”, then the applicant does not qualify to participate in Value in Treatment and should not proceed with completing the rest of the application unless requesting an exception. This section will not be scored.

1. Is the applicant enrolled in Medicare and eligible to bill for services under the Medicare program?
· YES 

· NO (if no, the applicant is ineligible)
2. The applicant is one of the following (select only ONE entity that will serve as the participant):
· Physician

· Group practice comprised of at least one physician

· Hospital outpatient department

· Federally qualified health center

· Rural health clinic

· Community mental health center

· Clinic certified as a certified community behavioral health clinic pursuant to section 223 of the Protecting Access to Medicare Act of 2014

· Opioid treatment program

· Critical Access Hospital

· None of the above (if none, the applicant is ineligible)

3. Is the applicant identified by a single tax payer identification (TIN) for billing purposes?

· YES (Please provide)

· NO (if no, the applicant is ineligible)
4. Is the applicant a separate and unique legal entity that is recognized and authorized to conduct business under applicable federal, state, or tribal law?

· YES 

· NO (if no, the applicant is ineligible)

5. Is the applicant capable of repaying demonstration payments to CMS, if applicable, and of establishing reporting mechanisms, including but not limited to mechanisms for reporting on quality measures, and ensuring compliance with demonstration requirements?

· YES 

· NO (if no, the applicant is ineligible)
6. Does the applicant’s OUD care team include the following Medicare-enrolled physicians and/or practitioners (employed or contracted)? Check all that apply.

· At least one physician furnishing primary care services or addiction treatment services

Please indicate how many: 
Primary Care Provider(s):_______
Addiction Provider(s):_______

· At least one physician or other health care practitioner authorized to prescribe or dispense narcotic drugs to individuals for maintenance treatment or detoxification treatment 

Please indicate how many: 
Provider(s) authorized to prescribe/dispense narcotics:_______

· None of the above (if none, the applicant is ineligible)

7. The applicant’s OUD care team is able and available to provide OUD treatment services on a face-to-face basis. 

· YES

· NO (if no, the applicant is ineligible)
8. Will the applicant be participating in the following programs as of April 1, 2021? Check all that apply. 

· Maryland Primary Care Program (MDPCP) (if selected, the applicant is ineligible)

· CMMI’s Primary Care First (PCF) Model (if selected, the applicant is ineligible)

· CMMI’s Comprehensive Primary Care Plus (CPC+) Model (if selected, the applicant is ineligible)

· None of the above 
9. Is the applicant requesting an eligibility exception for one or more of the eligibility criteria noted in Questions 1-8 where the selected response was noted as “the applicant is ineligible”? 

· YES (if yes, the applicant must complete the requested information in the table below).
· NO (if no, the applicant is ineligible)

· Not Applicable (applicant meets all eligibility criteria from questions 1-8)
	Exception Requested (list each applicable question #)
	Explanation (why is the exception need?)
	Mitigation Plan (how and when does the applicant expect to satisfy the eligibility requirement?)


Applicant Information and Governance Structure

This section requests information regarding the applicant’s governance structure. Governance structure questions are intended to illustrate how applicant’s organizational layout or governance can readily accommodate implementation and responsibilities within Value in Treatment. This section is worth a maximum of 10 points. 

10. Contact Information (individual filling out the application)

a. First and Middle Name:

b. Last Name:

c. Title/Position:

d. Relationship to the Applicant Organization:

e. Mailing Address (Street Address, City, State, Nine-Digit ZIP Code):  

f. Telephone Number:

g. E-mail Address:

11. Applicant Information (entity applying as demonstration participant)

a. Legal Business Name of applicant, as reported to the Internal Revenue Service: 

b. Additional Name(s) (i.e., “Doing Business As”/DBA Name) (enter N/A if not applicable): 

c. Legal and/or financial affiliations to other entities (enter N/A if not applicable):

d. Mailing Address (Street Address, City, State, and Nine-Digit ZIP Code): 

e. Please provide a single TIN and single National Provider Identification (NPI) number to be used for Value in Treatment billing purposes: 

TIN:

NPI:

f. Applicant’s Provider Transaction Access Number (PTAN) for applicants enrolled in Part B (enter N/A if not applicable): 

g. Applicant’s CMS Certification Number (CCN), for applicants enrolled in Part A (enter N/A if not applicable): 

h. Does the applicant confirm that all information in the Medicare Provider Enrollment, Chain, and Ownership System (PECOS) is accurate and up-to-date as of the submission of its responses to this RFA? 

· YES (if yes, applicant may proceed with application)

· NO (if no, applicant must update PECOS information before proceeding with application or request an application exception in Question 9 if applicant is not yet enrolled in Medicare (note that the applicable question to enter in the requested table information is 1).
i.  Does the Applicant or any of its affiliates have any outstanding overpayments or other debts to CMS?  

· YES (if yes, please identify amount owed and date of the determination of the amount owed)

Amount:

Date of Determination:

· NO 
12. Applicant Governance Structure and Compliance:

a. In a short paragraph (maximum of 300 word count), please specify applicant’s governing body and decision-making process, including the organizational structure for Value in Treatment functions and the designated individual/s making Value in Treatment implementation decisions.
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b. To the best of your knowledge, has the applicant or anyone employed by the applicant had a final adverse legal action (as defined on page 12 of the Medicare Enrollment Application for Physicians and Non-Physician Practitioners, CMS-855i)? Failure to disclose could be grounds for application denial or immediate termination from the demonstration program.
· YES (if yes, please list each adverse legal action and specify when each occurred and the entity that imposed the action)
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· NO

c. To the best of your knowledge, has the applicant or anyone employed by the applicant been the subject of an investigation by, prosecution by, or settlement with the HHS Office of Inspector General, U.S. Department of Justice, or any other Federal or State enforcement agency in the last five years relating to allegations of failure to comply with applicable Medicare or Medicaid billing rules, the Anti-Kickback Statute, the physician self-referral prohibition, or any other applicable fraud and abuse laws? Failure to disclose could be grounds for application denial or immediate termination from the demonstration program.
· YES (if yes, please list and describe each investigation, prosecution, or settlement)
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· NO 

OUD Care Team 

The applicant is required to have or establish an OUD care team that employs or contracts with, at minimum, at least one physician furnishing primary care services or addiction treatment services and at least one physician or other health care practitioner authorized to prescribe or dispense narcotic drugs to individuals for maintenance treatment or detoxification treatment (these can be the same individual). Applicants may also include in their OUD care team one or more practitioners licensed under state law to furnish psychological, counseling, or social services to applicable beneficiaries. The following questions request information regarding the applicant’s OUD care team. 

This section is worth a maximum of 20 points.

13. Has the applicant established an OUD care team that includes members who are permitted to furnish psychological, counseling, or social services by state law within their applicable scope of practice? Check all that apply and indicate number. 

· Licensed professional counselor ____

· Licensed clinical alcohol and drug counselor ____

· Licensed marriage and family therapist ____

· Certified peer specialist ____

· Community health worker ____

· Care Manager ____

Please list:

· Other practitioners licensed under State law____

Please list:

· None of the above

14. Does the applicant have an established formal relationship with each of the OUD care team members identified in questions 6 and 13?

· YES 

· NO (if no, describe the timeline for establishing such relationships with required providers and other OUD care team members): 
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15. Please refer to Attachment 1 and complete the requested information in accordance to the guidance embedded in the attachment. The number of OUD care team members listed in this spreadsheet should match the number indicated in questions 6 and 13. This attachment is part of the application package and failure to submit will result in the application determined to be incomplete and/or nonresponsive.

Proposed Demonstration Region

16. Please identify the state/s and county/counties in which the applicant proposes to furnish OUD treatment services to applicable beneficiaries under Value in Treatment. List each state with the same format as is listed in Attachment 2_ViT Prevalence Rates.  
State(s): Format is two-digit state abbreviation; separate with comma <”,”> if more than one listed. 
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County/counties: Format is state county SSA code; separate with comma <”,”> if more than one listed.
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CMS application reviewers will score applicants based on the state and county provided in this application and the prevalence and utilization rates specific to that state and county, as listed in Attachment 2_ViT Prevalence Rates. If the applicant intends to furnish OUD treatment services to applicable beneficiaries residing in multiple states and/or counties, the state and/or county with the highest rates will be used to score this section. This section is worth a maximum of 20 points. Specifically:

· Applicants serving beneficiaries who reside in states with above average national Medicare OUD prevalence rates will receive 5 points

· Applicants serving beneficiaries who reside in counties with above average national Medicare OUD prevalence rates will receive 5 points.  

· Applicants serving beneficiaries who reside in states with above average national Medicare OUD-related ED visits and hospitalizations will receive 5 points

· Applicants serving beneficiaries who reside in counties with above average national Medicare OUD-related ED visits and hospitalizations will receive 5 points

Medicare Patient Volume

This section requests the applicant’s history of treating Medicare FFS OUD beneficiaries. If applicants are unable to provide requested data points based on collected data, please provide best estimates.  This section is worth a maximum of 15 points.

17. In CY 2019, to how many Medicare FFS beneficiaries with an OUD diagnosis did the applicant furnish office-based or non-office based visits to? ________

Is this based on collected data or best estimates?
· Collected

· Best Estimate
18. Please indicate the proportion of the Medicare FFS beneficiaries with an OUD diagnosis in the applicant’s care (as indicated in Question 17) who were: 

a) Dually-eligible for Medicare and Medicaid: ________

b) Engaged in MAT treatment: ________

c) Retained in MAT treatment for at least 180 days: ________

Is this based on collected data or best estimates?
· Collected data

· Best estimate
19. Does the applicant anticipate being able to provide OUD treatment services to the same number of beneficiaries with an OUD diagnosis indicated in Question 17? 

· We are prepared to provide OUD treatment services to the same number of beneficiaries.

· We are prepared to provide OUD treatment services to a greater number of beneficiaries, if services are applicable and accepted by the beneficiary.

· No, we anticipate we will provide OUD treatment services to a smaller number of beneficiaries. 

Proposed OUD Treatment Services

Value in Treatment participants will have the flexibility to use the CMF and performance-based incentive to implement tailored and individualized OUD treatment services that best meet an applicable beneficiary’s treatment needs. This section serves as the applicant’s proposed implantation plan, and requires the applicant to identify current challenges in treating and engaging applicable beneficiaries, how the applicant intends to implement Value in Treatment, and how the CMF and performance-based incentive will be used. This section is worth a maximum of 35 points.   
20. Please describe the applicant’s current challenges with engaging and retaining applicable beneficiaries in OUD treatment (650 maximum word count).
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21. The applicant’s proposed implementation plan includes using the CMF payment for the following types of services (refer to “Care Delivery Intervention” section of this RFA for examples of each). Select all that apply. For each service selected, please describe and discuss how each will address the noted challenges above. Cite all relevant evidence-based research or data that helps support your rationale (250 maximum word count for each selection.
· Staff time for Value in Treatment capacity building and infrastructure readiness
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· Hire or contract staff needed to furnished proposed services
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· Expand care delivery settings or modalities
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· Provide enhanced social support services (which must be furnished in compliance with applicable fraud and abuse laws)
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· Coverage of recovery enabling services
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· Other
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22. The applicant’s proposed implementation plan includes offering face-to-face visits for some OUD treatment services.
· YES (if yes, please specify. 250 maximum word count)
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· NO 
23. The applicant’s proposed implementation plan includes offering after-hours access to OUD treatment services.
· YES 

· NO

24. The applicant’s proposed implementation plan includes a protocol to following-up with applicable beneficiaries seen in the ED or hospital. Please select the statement that applies:

· Follow-up generally will not occur 

· Follow-up will occur only if we are alerted by the ED or hospital

· Follow-up will occur because we will take proactive efforts to identify our OUD patients who’ve been admitted to the ED or hospital

· Follow-up will be done routinely because we have arrangements in place with the ED and hospital tracking OUD patients to ensure timely follow-up is done.

25. Increasing access of applicable beneficiaries to OUD treatment services may occur by establishing voluntary relationships in the community that can increase awareness of the services offered by the participant. Does the applicant’s proposed implementation plan include the following types of voluntary relationships? Select all that apply:

· We will engage with EDs and/or inpatient facilities (e.g., by informing them of the services that we will provide to potentially eligible patients and coordinating with them upon referral of an OUD patient).

· We will engage with other physical, behavioral, substance use, or community-based partners. 
Please describe (250 maximum word count): 
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· We will not be engaging with external sources 

Please explain (250 maximum word count): 
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26. Please indicate the OUD treatment services and MAT medications currently furnished by the applicant and OUD care team, and how such services will be enhanced or expanded under Value in Treatment (650 maximum word count).
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27. Is the applicant currently participating in a Health Information Exchange (HIE), or will be participating in a HIE during the Value in Treatment performance period? 
· YES 

· NO (if no, please describe how patient data will be shared and communicated among the OUD Care Team and other formal partners. 250 maximum word count.)
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28. Please confirm the following statements if true. Select all that apply.

· A strategy for ensuring patient safety and quality is or will be established under Value in Treatment. This includes clinical and procedural protocols for the proposed services, safety monitoring to ensure all protocols are being followed, corrective action for violation of protocols, monitoring of quality measures, and communication strategy to effectively communicate with providers and payers about a beneficiary’s OUD treatment plan.

· A strategy for ensuring the applicable beneficiary agrees to receive OUD treatment services is or will be established under Value in Treatment. This includes a plan for notifying and educating eligible beneficiaries about Value in Treatment via written notice, which includes information on beneficiary rights to opt-out of participation and data-sharing at any time, along with other beneficiary rights, and obtaining beneficiary consent to participate.

· A strategy for ensuring family and caregivers of an applicable Medicare OUD beneficiary are engaged under Value in Treatment. This includes engaging them in Value in Treatment education and consent, as well as the patient’s treatment plan, as needed. 

Program Duplication Assessment

The purpose of the Program Duplication Assessment is for applicants to identify other models, programs, or demonstrations that target similar populations and/or services relevant to the applicant’s participation in Value in Treatment. Applicants will also identify how they will monitor potential program and funding duplication. Failure to complete the Program Duplication Assessment may disqualify the applicant. CMS, in its sole discretion, will determine whether the information provided by the applicant and/or participant constitutes duplication. Participation in other models, programs, or demonstrations will not preclude applicant from participation in Value in Treatment. This section will not be scored.
29. Will the applicant be participating in any of the Medicare initiatives below as of April 1, 2021? Please check all that apply. 

· Shared savings initiatives 

Please specify:
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· Total cost of care initiatives 

Please specify:
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· Medical home initiatives

Please specify:
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· CMS initiatives that pay a care management fee

Please specify:
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· Other
Please specify:
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30. Will the applicant be participating in other federally-funded programs targeting individuals with OUD, including State/Tribal Opioid Response (SOR/TOR), State Targeted Response (STR), Medicaid Demonstration Project to Increase Substance Use Provider Capacity as of April 1, 2021?    

· YES 

Please specify:
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· NO

Appendix B: Request for Application (RFA) Checklist
Below is a checklist detailing the documents that your organization is required to submit for consideration in Value in Treatment. It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all documents required are included with the application. Failure to comply may result in applications determined to be ineligible, incomplete, and/or nonresponsive based on initial screening and may be eliminated from further review. 

All documents must be signed, scanned, and attached to the application email. Please retain the original, signed documents. If you have any questions about what your organization is required to submit, please contact CMS at ValueinTreatment@cms.hhs.gov.
Checklist:

· Completed Application (Appendix A and B)
· Completed Attachment 1 (OUD Care Team Roster)
I understand that CMS provides no opinion on the legality of any contractual or financial arrangement that has been proposed or documented in this application.  The receipt by CMS of any such documents in the course of the application process or otherwise shall not be construed as a waiver or modification of any applicable laws, rules, or regulations, and will not preclude CMS, HHS (including its Office of Inspector General), any law enforcement agency, or any other federal or state agency from enforcing any and all applicable laws, rules, and regulations.  

I have read the contents of this application and I certify that I am legally authorized to submit the application. Upon submission of this application I certify to the best of my knowledge that all of the submitted information is true, accurate, and complete. If I become aware that any submitted information is not true, accurate, and complete, I will correct such information promptly.  I understand that the knowing omission, misrepresentation, or falsification of any submitted information may be punished by criminal, civil, or administrative penalties, including fines, civil damages, and/or imprisonment.

Signature of authorized individual: _________________________________________________________

Date: ________________________________________________________________________________



























Required Providers (Question 6):





Other OUD care team members (Question 13):































































































































































































